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The developiment of the $60-million Atomic Energy Commission
produciion ond research facility in Miomisburg con be traces to

an otigin in 1928 when the Thomas and Hochwolt Loboratories were
estroblished in Doyton. This firm wos vcquired by Monsonto
Chemicol Compony in 1936 to carry on long-ronge ond fundomental

scientilic study on o compony wide basis,

In Morch 1939, only a few waeeks after the discovery of uranium
fission, the possible military importance of otomic energy wos
colled to the attantion of the U, S, Government. In the outemn

of 1939, the firs) Government commitiee on vronivm wos created.
The initial work wos dons in vatious universities with the overall
elfort being somewhat loosely organized. By the endof 1941, on
exjensive veview indicaled thot on increased elfort on the vronium
project shovld be undannahen under the adminisirotion of o more
formal organization. This decision was approved by President
Rooseveli. In the summer of 1942, the Army Cosps of Enginsers

organized the Manhaiton Engineer District for this purpase.

Chaeles A. Thomas,
Project Director,

1943 - 1945,

Dr. Charlos Allen Thamas wae director of Monsante’s C_mmvl
Research Dopartment in Dayton when, in 1943, he wos called to
Washington for o conference with General Latlie Groves, Groves
hod been assigned (esponsibility for the Manhotian Projact in
September, 1942, Also preseni ot the conference was Jomes Conont
who hod heen president of Horvord Unlversity prior to his appain-
ment 1o the Notional Delense Resaarch Commitice. After sweoring
Thomas to secrecy, they revacled 1o him the top secret plon 1o
build on atomicbomb. Following several doys of meatings and
discussions, Monsonio occepted the responsibility for the chemistry

ond metcllurgy of radicactive polonium—waork to become known as

the Dayton Projecy.

Polonium was vitol 1o the consiruction of an atomic bomb gt a
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Jomes H. Lum,

1943 - 1945 ‘ .

L oboratory Director,

sowrce of nevirons, subatomic pasticles which would asswre initie-
tion of @ chain reaction. Discovered by Pierre ond Marie Curie

in 1898, polonium wos nomed to honor Polond, her home. Piior te
Monsonto’s involvement in the Manhatton Project no woighol;lo
quontities of the pure element had ever been isoleted ond prep-

oretion of the pure metal colled for the development of revoly-

tionory sclentific techniques,

Monsonto begon preliminary orgonization and personnel recruiting
ot the Compony’s Central Research Department on Nicholas Roed
in Deyton in s.p'.mb.'l 1943. When the Dayton Project began to
expand to other temporary locotions during Werld War U, the
originol Nicholas Rood localion was designoted as Unit |

Dyv. Jomes H. Lum trom Monsenio was oppointed Laboratory Direcior

4

W. C. Fernelius,
" Assl. Laborotory Director,
1944 - 1945,
L oboratory Director,
1945 - 1946.

ond Dr. W. C. Femelivs from Ohio State University was appointed

Associate Laboratory Director.

Early in July 1943 it bocome apparent that guarters entirely
1eparote (rom the Unit } were neaded {or the polonium operation.
Construction of a new research loboratory was impos sible due
to time and moterial limilations, and rental spoce wos ot ©
premium, An old theee ond one-holf story building at 1601

W. Fiest Street in Dayton, Ohio, was leused by Mensanio. This
building had been con structed in 1879 10 house Bonebrake
Theological Seminary. It was loter used s 0 normal school,
then as o warshouse by the Dayton Boord of Education. It

d cansideroble repair (every window in the building

require

was beoken, mony interior walls hod 1o be replastered, ond
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the stoitcase from the second to the third floor was missing).
Also, extensive renovalion was necsssary to fil the building
for service as a chemical rasearch labovatory. This site

becama known as Unit 11} ond all octivities were tonsierred

in October 1944,

A lock of scientific equipment plogued the project from the
owiser. Torol initiol laborotéry supplies ol the Seminary
I:ui'd.ing, consisted ol o bushel basket'’ lilled with assoried
chemical glosswore. One of the mojor jobs in the eorly doys

was procuring necessory equipmeni to stock o teseorch loboratary.
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Going oway party for W. C. Fernelivs ot Unit lil. Shown
I, 1o r. are Joseph Spicka, Ed Lorson, Fernelius, Corl
Rollinson, Malcolm Horing ond Joseph Burbage.
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Unit 11l site in 1948, Coleteria is shown in foreground and
corner of physics building in left foreground.

This was no easy job with the wor on, and it wos mede more dilhi-
cult due to the secret noture of the project. No officiol pri-

ority toting wos oblvinoble becouse ony official relerionship

with the Manhaiton Enginear District had to be ovoided for
security reosons. Forlunataly, o statemen? thot Mensonto wos
engoged in ciiticol govemment work was normally adequare to
obtain the necessary materiols. Where this foiled, scientists
eithe) improvised o/ manoged to get by without the equipment.
Al Monhatton Project work at Doyton was secsed ond the security
regulations were rigid: Armed guords were on-site 24 hours @

day to prevent unouthori xed access 1o the loboratory. Employes

wore not outharized to discuss the noture of their work oway
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feam the laboratory. Even inside the plant extro securily pro-
coutions were taken. Polonium wos referred to by code nomes to
ovoid accidental compiomise. Security olso mede it difficult

to ottract new employes for they could be pold nothing specific
obeut the work they would be doing, Indeead, fow || ony of the
employes knew thet they were ultimately working on the atomic
bonb. Yery eotly in the project’s development, Anhur Compton,
e leoding U, S. physicist, visited Doyron ond spoke to the
technicdl employes of Unit Jil. As his sp;ocb progressed he
divulged thet the work wos in the noture of development of

@ secret weapon, ""wae dan't know how far Germany has progre ssed;
but whoever gets the onswes first will win the wae*’, As he |
reoched this point, howevaer, bl. Lum, fearing o breach of
security, topldly chonged the seb|ect. This proved 1o be the
bigge st him) ebout the noture of thelr work that the Monsonto

osmployes received until the bomb was dropped on Japon.

Growth of the project provided odditlenal problems. Now
enployes were moving 1o Dayton to apply their scientific

skills 1o the project. Housing was difficult 1o find, portic-

vioely rental housing for men with families. Bachelors found
quarlers in rooming hous'os, ot the YMCA or shored cpartments
when they covld be found. The project’s business office worked
with locel realtors to locate fomily housing ond onxious employes

scanned the newspeper daily. |t was thiough o newspoper adver-

femrem e cme—

4 Sy

"

tisemenit that ; 16 room house in the loshionable Qakwood section

of Dayton wos found for rentol. Since the roﬁl&l fee was much
100 high for one lamily, thrse Monsanta employes rented the

I
structure ond three fomilies shored the hou !o.j;'l'ho home wos

vnique both in i1s 3ize ond i1s lovishness. The living room

contained o fu)) size pipe orgon which would hove been adequote

lor o large church., The fireplace wos lorge enovgh for the
childeen 10 hide behind the ondirons. Allhoud'; these wos o
Jour-car gorage, none of the new residonts ’Iﬂe on ovtemobile,
The Monsonio wives vsed childien’s \nmgc:r\s,;c;g'y being their
groceries home {1om the atore. Shopping upc‘:;dhlon: by the
wives must have been a sight to the neigh&op;fl who were oc-

customed to sending their butlers to do the shepeing.

A grovp of 30 10 40 men with the Army’s Spoc.lol Engineer De-
tachment (SED) were alsa ossigned to the Do}ton Project.
Although military men, they wore civilian ‘cloql\u for securily
purposes. The top secrat noture of the project presented
special problems 1o these young, heolthy, spparent eivillions
in thoir off-duty howrs. One of these men was stopped by the

police who requested his identification. His Class A pass

showing specicl detoched duly wes not edequate, however, ond he

waos taken 1o the local joil. Such emargencies were expected
ond an officer ot Wright Field had been designated a3 o contact

mon for identificotion of the SED personnel. Ay luek would
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hove it, though, he could not be reached thot night and the

hopless SED mon spent the entire night in joil.

As the magnitude of the polonium production progrom unfolded
ond the stofl grew 10 mee) enlosged scientific demonds, it
become opparent thet edditional laborotory space would be n-‘
quired. The Dayton Project hod enponded topidly fiom its
small beginning to aimost 200 persons in less thon a yeor.

In Febrwory 1944 the Runnymeade Playhouse in Ookwood was
rented by the Army Corps of Engineers and tumned over to

Mon sonto. 1t was dillicult, however, 10 obloin o leose on

the propesty. Tha Signal Corps hod vsed the properly previ-
ously ond local residents were unhoppy with the conston)
mavement of property oud equipment in and out of the neighbor-

hood, one of the most prestigious in Dayton.

The locotion, designoted Unit 1V, was chosen primorily becouse
there stood the only building of adequate site in Doylon that
could be occupied immediotely. The rentol ogresment stipulated
thot the building wos 1o be turned bock 1o the owners in its
original condition. The building had been erected in 1927 1o
provide recreationol 'uciiilieu tor the Tolbotr fomily, ond

it provided some of the most unique focilities aver encountered
in o scientilic Joboratory. Thesa facilities included o corrugoted

gless roof, severol greenhouses, on indoor tennis courl with

Entronce to Unit IV viewed down the columned portico.
Only the front doorknobd remains today.
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lounges, ond on ovi-

green cork Moor, o stoge, @ squosh covrd,

door swimming pool.
To quel) the neighbors’ complaints, no deliveries were made o

the site by commercisl comriers. Rather deliveries wece made

oded onto smoller govemment

$1ill, the installotion

ve Unit 111, where they wesa relo

vehicles and shutiied to Runnymeade.

Loading dock at Unit IV. Ship

Unit 11! using smoll governmen
gloss roof is visible in the bockground.

12

menls were shuttled from
¢ vehicles. Corrugated

& — 53

—— 0 e+

of security fencing, 24 hout per doy exterior lighting ond

ormed guards parolling the site displeased the neighbars,

who hod no ideo of the urgency of the processes being conducted

inside the fence.

Extensive alterotions to the oﬁuior of the main building
were not vequired, but the interior presanted mony problems

In constructing process lacilities ond lebororories. Care

wos exarcised in making as few chonges as possible in the
‘wllﬂlng to alleviate the problem of restoration upon vacating
the sile, Precautions were 1aken to minimize annoyances such
a3 noise, smoke ond dirt 1o avoid undue criticism from the .

residential erec.

1 became known, howover, alter the explosion of she firsy
alomic weapons, thet the work a1 the ployhouse utilixed radio-
active moteriol. The citizens of Ookwood showed a good bir of
concern ond the frequency of compleints incressed morkedly.
*'We found o dead bird in our yard, H must have flown over
your plont. Pleose come over ond check it.”" 'There |3 some
brown dust on my porch. You had better look into ir."* ore

exomples. One resident colled 1o complain thot the side of

her home was bscoming discolored end osked Monsonto 1o in-

vestigote. A local testing leborotory was hired 10 examine

the situation and reported thal the problem was coused by

13
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rusting window screens ond hed no relationship to work af
Runnymeade. It is significont fo note that aot a aingle

occident occurred ot either Monsonto location cousing ony

injury to the public.

Ceeat cove wos taken to assure the sofety of the surrounding

oveas. Trucks equipped with sodiotion detection equipment

Cm

made regulorly scheduled runs throughout the greater Doyton
oreo., Even o9 lar as 75 miles distont, air ond soil and

weoter weve sempled Yo ensvre thot radioactivily wos not re-

leosed in the community.

Radicoctivity in the loboratory had to be carelully controlled.
Here, scientists ware working with the largest amounts of
polonium ever isalated, ond the ossociaied radiooctivity wos
significont, Employes who were exposed to significon) amounis
of voJlo-ocﬁva on @ daily bosis were checked regularly both
for their own health, ond 10 ossure thot no contominalion was
leaving the laborotory and entering the community.

Schedvlas were sstoblished for delivery of the purified poloni-

om which were sxceptionaly havrd to meet. 1t beceme on ant to
foniven. Some deod-

deloy the cowier orriving to pick up the po
k with the

Yines wess so close thot on employe would be seat 1o fol

courier and 10 keep him occupied while the fingl touches were put on

14

5

the pachkages. 51ill, oMl commitments were met ond shipments
were made on schedule. :

As early a3 1946 i1 bhecome evident ilun o permonent polonium
productian facility was needed. Th\‘u‘j’q project which some
thought might last only six months had grown to o stote of
permonence. Among the locations considered fos the proposed
facility was a site midwoy belwaen the atomic planis at Los

Alamos, New Mexico and Honford, Washington, A Tennesses

location near the Ock Ridge Atomic plony was also investigared

The Dayton orew was linally selected for o number of reasons
omong which were o good supply of sjgki"od labor and adequate
woter and power supplies. The site selectsd fo; Mound Leb-
oratory was on a hill 878 leet above the sea level mnd obout 200
fest above the Miami River in Mlonl’iau'g, Ohio. Adjacent so
the laboratory is the largest conicol.Indion mownd In the

stare of Ohlo. From this prehistoric bqéulol gound the {ab-

osatory derived its nome. o

Mound [_aboratory becowe the fivst permanent Alomic Enesgy

‘Commission lacility when it was first occupied in May 1949,

Thate were, in joral, 14 mojor buildings constucted in the
original $25.5-million complex with a fotal floor area of
66,000 squore fest. Polonium processing was storfed in

F ehruary 1949,

15
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1t wos decided that it wowld be both less expensive ond
sofer to dismonitle the Unit 1V lacotion thon Yo restore it

0 its orlginal condition. Surveys mede aliar the transler

of operations te Mound L eboratary showed thot the interiar
ol she pluyhovse wos highly contominated. Damolition was
storted in Februery 1950 ond tompleted later the same
year. The remains were mv\'!ﬂ' tu Mound Loboretory by truck
and syored. The oxcavc.-ﬁon was filled with dirt, covered

with s0d, and reluned to the originel owners.

Unit 1il, on the other hond, exhibited levels of vadiooctivity
which were Jow encugh 1o cllow decontomination. Aftar equip-
wont was removed, the building wos cleaned ond returned ro

the Board of Educalion in 1950. The Unit | location syill
oparates as the Doyton L oberatory of Monsonte Ressorch Corpo;

ration.

The defense work that begon during 1943 was nawowly based on.

produciion of rodicisotopes. Since then it has enpondad into the

development ond prodection of functiona! components lor weapons.

For & number of }nn this Yight menufocturing hos been the main-

stay of the Loborotery.
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Views of southwest corner of Unit IV during dismontling

operations in 1950,
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55 galion drums for removol from
n the backgrovnd.

Interior of Unit IV during dismantling operations.
materiol was loaded into .
the site. The stoge is visible i

John Brodley

Director of Explosives
Operations, holds the
-knob to the front door of
Runnymeoade Playhouse.
Bradley come to the
Dayton Project with the
Army’s Special Engineer
Detachment in 1945,
Production of plutonium-238 grew out of our early wark with
polonium-210. Plutonium-238 is procassed in unprecedented quanii-
ties to supply o burgeoning demond for heat sources to be veed in
thermoelectric energy conversion systems. The bosic physical, chemi-
col, ond nuclear properties of these nuclides are being stvdied inten-

sively. Our experience in hendling radioactivity led also 1o research

with plutonium-239, o fuel foe nuclear power reactors.

The i sotopic heat source progiams bogon with the development of a
small thermoelectric generotor powerad by o radicactive isotope.
Satellites orbiting the earth are conlirming the potentiol of isotopic
generotors which conver) isotopic heot to electrical energy. By the
eorly sinties the Laborotory was firmly estcblished as the countiy’s
leading manuloctvrer of these power sousces.

19
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The saparation of stable isotopes ef the noble geses urilizing
thermal diffusion of gases began as an expansion of our isotepic
cesacreh in the mid-filties. By 1964 theorstical and applied re-
search had established the Labarctary as the free world's chief

supplier of these isorepes.

A3 new pragrams oppear MRC will continve 1o diversify in its re-
ssarch, development, and praduction for the Atomic Energy Com-
mission. As new applicarions are found for isotopes in space ex-

pleration, medical research, and other technical frontiers, Mound

Lsborerory will crecte its future.’

A > .

Aerial view of Mound Laboratery.
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